
 

 
1 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
CABINET MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY WELLBEING, HEALTH & CARE 
 
TUESDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER 2023 AT 4.00 PM 
 
COUNCIL CHAMBER - THE GUILDHALL, PORTSMOUTH 
 
Telephone enquiries to Anna Martyn, Local Democracy Officer - Tel: 023 9283 4870. 
Email: Anna.Marytn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 
If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above. 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Matthew Winnington (Cabinet Member) 
  
 
Councillor Lewis Gosling 
Councillor Graham Heaney 
 

Councillor Brian Madgwick 
 

 
(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting). 
 
Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk  
 
Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is 
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 
12 noon of the working day before the meeting and must include the purpose of the 
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are 
accepted. 
 

A G E N D A 
  
 1   Apologies for absence  

  
 2   Declarations of interest  

  
 3   Working with Autism and Neurodivergence, including Transition (Pages 

3 - 8) 

Public Document Pack

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/


 
2 

 

 

  To update the Portfolio holder and spokespeople of the developments in 
approaches and support being progressed in Portsmouth Adult Social Care for 
autistic and neurodivergent individuals.  
   

 4   Victory Unit update (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

  To update the Cabinet Member and opposition spokespeople on progress with 
creating increased Extra Care units in Portsmouth. 
   

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and 
social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the 
meeting nor records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. 
Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the 
Council's website and posters on the wall of the meeting's venue. 
 
Whilst every effort will be made to webcast this meeting, should technical or other 
difficulties occur, the meeting will continue without being webcast via the Council's 
website. 
 
This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785 

 

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785


 
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not require Integrated Impact 
Assessments, Legal or Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

1 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- Official - 

 
  
Title of meeting:  
 

Community Wellbeing, Health and Care Portfolio 
meeting 

Subject: 
 

Working with Autism and Neurodivergence, including 
Transition 

Date of meeting: 
 

26th September 2023 

Report by: 
 

Liza Grainger, Transition Lead 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

 

 
1. Requested by 
 
Councillor Matthew Winnington, Cabinet Member, Community Wellbeing, Health and Care 
 
2. Purpose 
  
To update the Portfolio holder and spokespeople of the developments in approaches and 
support being progressed in Portsmouth Adult Social Care for autistic and neurodivergent 
individuals.  
 
3. Information Requested 
 
To provide an update to the paper presented to the Health, Wellbeing and Social Care 
Portfolio meeting on 5th December 2022. The paper presented in 2022 outlined the 
appointment of staff to work with autistic and neuro-divergent adults in the city, the 
creation of Room One and the ambition to better plan to work with young people who had 
care and support needs as adults.   
 
 
4. Information, Advice and Support 
 
4.1 Room One 
 
Room One is currently located at the Charles Dickens centre. It is a 'one stop shop' for 
autistic and neurodivergent adults. Portsmouth Autism Community Forum have been 
involved in the setup of Room One, including consulting with members to ensure the 
environment is suitable with their recommendations on paint colour, lighting etc being 
implemented.  
 
Room One offers a timetable of activities on a monthly basis. There are regular peer 
support sessions, both in person and online. KoCreate creative sessions are hosted at  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not require Integrated Impact 
Assessments, Legal or Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

2 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- Official - 

 
Room One. There are also regular drop-in sessions, specific topics for these sessions 
have included Transition to adulthood, Into Work, Money advice. In collaboration with the 
Independence and Wellbeing Team there is a weekly session at the Milton Community 
Allotments. 
 
One to one sessions are available, these are provided by the Room One facilitator.  
Due to demand and the requirements for Room One a new location is being sought for 
Room One. 
 
4.2 Employment Support 
 
The You Trust have been providing Employment support to Autistic and Neurodivergent 
Adults. Referrals are made both from professionals and through self-referrals. The support 
service has supported people to remain in existing employment and enabled individuals to 
find voluntary and paid positions. This service was initially commissioned for one year, 
continued funding is currently being requested.   
 
Information about the Employment Support service can be found on the You Trust 
website: https://theyoutrust.org.uk/autistic-and-neurodivergent/ 

 
 

5. Transition to Adulthood 
 

5.1 Neurodivergent Transition Team 
 
The team consists of a Social Worker, Occupational Therapist and Independence Support 
Assistant. They work with Neurodivergent young people who do not have a learning 
disability. Those with a learning disability will be supported by the Integrated Learning 
Disability Service. The workers started in October 2022, having a period of induction 
before starting work with individuals. The team are currently working with over 40 young 
people.  
 
The team will complete assessment in line with The Care Act, taking into account the 
unique needs and circumstances of the individual and their carers/families. They work with 
the individuals to develop plans, including working with families, community resources and 
funded support. 
 
They have attended Education, Health and Care plan (EHCP) reviews with colleges, 
ensuring that the young person is able to access education opportunities. Some of the 
young people have been in the care of Children's services, the teamwork with the Personal 
Assistant from the Supporting Our Futures team.  
 
The team have supported young people to visit Room One and made use of the 
employment support service offered by the You Trust. 

Page 4

https://theyoutrust.org.uk/autistic-and-neurodivergent/


 
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not require Integrated Impact 
Assessments, Legal or Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

3 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- Official - 

 
5.2 Wider Transition to Adulthood - Transition Protocol 
 
The 'Transition Protocol' was last reviewed in July 2020. This document sets out the 
Principles and Process for the preparation for adulthood for children and young people 
who are likely to have care and support needs into Adulthood. This Protocol is currently 
being reviewed jointly across the Children and Families Directorate. One of the significant 
changes is a revision to the Pathway/Procedure to expand from the Education, Health and 
Care Plan reviews and the interaction of Children's workforce with the Adult workforce to a 
focus throughout the years and planning with the young person and their family.  
 
The revised protocol is currently being presented to senior management in both 
directorates for approval, once this has been completed the protocol will be shared with 
the workforce through a planned launch.  
 
5.3 Wider Transition to Adulthood - Managing Risk and Safeguarding people moving 
into Adulthood 
 
The 'Multi-Agency Framework for Managing Risk and Safeguarding People 
Moving into Adulthood' was published in July 2022. This was produced in collaboration 
with the 4 Local Area Safeguarding Boards covering Hampshire, Isle of Wight, Portsmouth 
and Southampton. It is fully supported and endorsed by the Local Safeguarding Children's 
Partnerships in this area.  
 
To support the implementation of this in Portsmouth representatives from Children's social 
care and Adult Social Care have been working together to develop a pilot 'Young Adult 
Safeguarding Panel.' The purpose of the panel is to have a forum attended by a range of 
partners across the statutory and voluntary services to offer information, advice and 
guidance in relation to transition planning for complex cases relating to vulnerability, risk 
and safeguarding.    

 
 
6. Workforce Development 

 
The e-learning element of the Oliver McGowan training is available on the Health 
Education England website. There is currently a Government Consultation open which 
considers the draft code of practice (Oliver McGowan draft code of practice - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) HIOW ICB have a steering group to progress the roll out of the training and 
are currently in the process of procuring a provider to deliver the webinar element of this 
training.  
 
The training videos being co-produced with the Portsmouth Autism Community Forum are 
in the final stages of editing and approval.   

 
 

Page 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/oliver-mcgowan-draft-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/oliver-mcgowan-draft-code-of-practice


 
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not require Integrated Impact 
Assessments, Legal or Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

4 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- Official - 

 
7. Next steps 
 
Following a successful bid to the Public Health Transformation Fund, funding has been 
obtained for a Team Manager-Transformation Lead to progress the development of 
sustainable support for Autistic and Neurodivergent adults in the city, embedding best 
practice. This is a 3-year post; recruitment is currently in progress.  
 
8. Outcomes 
The above information demonstrates the resources, protocols and other arrangements that 
aim to ensure that our autistic and neuro-divergent residents can access advice and 
support to live their lives. In order to demonstrate the outcomes of some of this work, two, 
(anonymised) case studies are shared below.     
 
A is 23 and has a diagnosis of Autism and a history of poor mental health, including 
depression, psychosis, self-harm and suicide attempts. A was referred to the Autism and 
Neurodivergence, Transitions Team over concerns that they were socially isolated, lacking 
in motivation and struggling to self-care. A also lived with an older relative, there were 
relationship issues and the home environment was a risk to them both. A had difficulty 
managing to attend college and pass required exams. 
 
Through taking a person-centred approach, recognising how A's life is impacted by their 
autism, support to manage some immediate practical concerns such as transport, 
budgeting and health eating, A and the team have drafted a support plan. The plan will 
support A to maintain budgeting and healthy eating, work productively at college and 
support him to build on independent living skills. The plan has helped A secure appropriate 
accommodation and he has begun to make links with other people through a gardening 
project and is making use of supported employment opportunities. A is focused on working 
towards his goals and this is noticeably improving his motivation and self-belief. 
 
B is 30 and is diagnosed with Autism, an eating disorder, anxiety and a speech disorder. B 
was referred to the Autism and Neurodiversity Transition Team as her challenges with 
social situations meant she was increasingly isolated in her accommodation. B struggled 
with tasks of daily living and confidence in her abilities. The team have supported B to 
develop a plan to address making connections with others, using Room One, accessing 
technology to support activities of daily living, meaningful occupation and accessing 
community groups to develop interests and further connections.    
 
Both A and B have fed back that the team have helped them to improve their lives, their 
confidence and continue to develop skills of independent living. The approach taken in 
support planning is not to care for, but to work with, with the aim of helping our residents 
become more independent and be able to gain support from and contribute to their 
community, building confidence and resilience.         
 
 

Page 6



 
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not require Integrated Impact 
Assessments, Legal or Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

5 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- Official - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by (Director) 
 
 
Appendices:  
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not require Integrated Impact 
Assessments, Legal or Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

1 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- Official - 

 
  
Title of meeting: Community Wellbeing, Health and Care 
 

 

Subject: Victory Unit Update 
 

 

Date of meeting: 26th September 2023 
 

 

Report by: Jane Walker, Head of Adult Care & Support 
 

 

Wards affected: All 
 

 

 

 
1. Requested by 
Councillor Matthew Winnington, cabinet member for Community Wellbeing, Health and 
Care.   
 
2. Purpose 
To update the Cabinet Member and opposition spokespeople on progress with creating 
increased Extra Care units in Portsmouth. 
  
3. Information Requested 
The Victory unit was a 19 bed facility attached to Maritime House, an Extra Care service in 
Hilsea. It is accessible from Maritime and also has a separate front entrance. The Victory 
Unit is leased from Housing 21, (H21) who are responsible for Maritime House.  
 
The Victory was used for a Rehabilitation Service, but ceased to have this function when 
the staff and facilities moved to the Jubilee Unit on the first floor of Harry Sotnick House to 
create an integrated Discharge to Assess, (D2A) and reablement service with Solent NHS 
Trust. Since this move, the Victory Unit acted for a brief period as a Hospital Discharge 
Service, but is now vacant.  
 
A kitchen is located between the Maritime and Victory areas and the removal of the 
rehabilitation service was accompanied by the closure of the kitchen, which was staffed by 
Portsmouth City Council, (PCC). In February 2023 the kitchen was transferred to H21 
under a Licence Agreement. 
 
The Adult Social Care strategic direction with regard to Housing and Support requires the 
development of additional Extra Care capacity. The proposal is for the lease of the 
remainder of the Victory Unit to be surrendered to H21 who will adapt the building to 
provide 9 Extra Care flats with Adult Social Care having 100% of nomination rights.  All 
flats will be ground floor and be designed to include accommodation of people with 
complex physical care needs. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not require Integrated Impact 
Assessments, Legal or Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

2 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- Official - 

 
Initially the ambition was to begin conversion building work in January 2023.  However, 
there has been delay due to due diligence around lease surrender. There has also been 
negotiation between the Council and H21 regarding the level of detail in the 'Heads of 
Terms' and initial specification. There needs to be a balance between the needs of the 
future residents as represented by the Council and H21 needing a reasonable degree of 
autonomy in taking the development forward. 
 
These issues have largely been resolved. A level of detail has been provided around lease 
surrender by H21 regards the costs of building and available funding that supported the 
view that payment of a surrender fee would not be viable. A meeting in July 2023 resulted 
in a shared agreement to move forward setting out parameters of design with a mutual 
commitment to working together as the project progresses.   
 
At the July meeting an agreement to draft a revised, more detailed Heads of Terms was 
given. This non-legally binding document stipulating the main terms of the surrender of 
PCC's interest at nil cost in return for delivery of a specification.  The specification will have 
sufficient detail to allow the project to proceed. Once the Head of Terms is in place, an 
Agreement to Surrender document, drafted initially by H21, will be drawn up that will 
contain a more detailed specification and a nominations agreement. Discussion is 
currently taking place regarding modification to the nomination agreement we have across 
Extra Care with H21.  This will inform the nominations agreement for the Victory Unit.  This 
document will be an agreement to surrender the lease, legally bind delivery of the 
specification and release PCC from its current leasehold obligations. It will commit H21 
into meeting certain milestones which will then lead to the surrender being completed. 
   
A further draft Heads of terms was produced by H21 in early August 2023, which 
addressed most of the issues discussed. Final amendments have been submitted and a 
meeting is scheduled for 18th September 2023, when relevant people are back from leave 
to sign off the final document and agree a date for surrender. 
   
Until this point PCC remains responsible for the building and is managing security at the 
site.  There were several building and safety issues identified in 2022 most of which have 
been addressed.  Tests and checks continue, and a new fire safety report has been 
scheduled, which will identify any outstanding or new issues. Any costs will be attributable 
to the ASC budget until the lease is surrendered. 
 
The project is being managed by management, legal, contracts and operational 
representatives from H21 and PCC. 
 
4. Outcome 
This paper details the process, expected number of and the nomination rights to the units. 
The outcome for Portsmouth residents is an increase in ground floor extra care capacity, 
enabling people with care and support needs to maintain their independence. 
 

Page 10



 
 
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not require Integrated Impact 
Assessments, Legal or Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

3 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- Official - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by (Director) 
 
 
Appendices:  
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Working with Autism and Neurodivergence, including Transition
	4 Victory Unit update

